
 1 

 
  

TOWN OF COUPEVILLE 
DESIGN REVIEW BOARD SPECIAL MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2009 
9:00 A.M. 

  
   
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  Chairperson Millie Fonda, Boardmembers Carol Thrailkill, Stig 
Carlson, Lynda Richards.  Absent:  Boardmembers Chuck Poust, Jill Usher, Randy Williams 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  
Town Planner Larry Kwarsick, Utility Clerk, Nanc Garner 
  
CALL TO ORDER 
The Meeting was called to order by Chairperson Fonda at 9:03 am 
  
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
The minutes of July 29, 2008 were approved as presented. 
  
NEW BUSINESS – Informal Meeting 
  
DRB 08-11 – Ebey’s Station – South Main Street – Applicants are Cresta Partners and Island 
Transit 
 
Planner Larry Kwarsick stated that the Design Review Board should have received a site plan, building 
elevations, landscaping, sign plan as well as the project narrative.  The meeting before the Design 
Review Board is for informal discussion and comment and to allow those in attendance to speak.  
 
Mr. Kwarsick explained the background of the project.  This is unique project, consisting of three 
parcels.  A collaborative site plan consisting of Ebey Station and the preliminary design of a new four 
building commercial development would be open for discussion and review.  One of the applicants, 
Island Transit has submitted a CUP for a park and ride lot. A separate application is a commercial 
development consisting of 4 buildings on South Main Street.  These applications came in separately on 
separate pieces of properties and the two applicants collaborated in the development of the plan.   
 
There has been one Reserve Design team meeting on this application.  The concerns was the use of rock 
material on the proposed building, vs. wood material which would be more appropriate and pedestrian 
access to the structure from the sidewalk along South Main Street.  Building A has been designed for 
medical offices and does not have direct access to South Main Street side.  The Reserve Design 
Committee wanted more detail as to how the project would be developed in phases.  Island Transit 
would be one project but the commercial building representatives did not know the sequence of when 
the building would be completed except for Building A.  
   
Planner Kwarsick introduced the following project representatives:  Rob Sebo, partners with Dave 
Tipton;  Chris Saxman, architect for the commercial building project; Rob Daniel, operations manager 
for Island Transit and Tim Goodman,  architect with Island Transit.  Visual display boards were setup 
and a project overview was presented to the Design Review Board.  



 2 

 
Boardmember Thrailkill asked about the new bus pullout and Mr. Goodman explained that there is an 
accessible route for the park and ride.  There will be more spaces than the current park and ride – almost 
double the amount of spaces.  The park and ride is not at full capacity at this time but is projected to fill 
up in the future.  Currently, the park and ride is in use on a temporary basis.  Chairperson Fonda 
commented that the existing access road has been switched and asked if the trees in the area would be 
saved.  Mr. Goodman responded that the plan is to keep much of the natural environment as possible but 
that diseased trees will be removed.  Planner Kwarsick explained that the two-way left hand turn lane 
along South Main Street will be extended.  Visually going north on Highway 20, the structures will be 
hidden behind Coupe’s village.  Mr. Goodmon commented that the trail at the transit site will be the first 
leg of the proposed ‘Rhododendron Trail’. 
 
Planner Kwarsick explained that there is currently one sign shown for the site plan and part of the 
Design Review packet.  Mr. Saxman stated that the first two buildings of the proposed commercial 
development have been leased.  The other two buildings in the back are in second phase and currently 
have no tenants.  Planner Kwarsick stated the intention is to complete the parking and site infrastructure 
improvements and complete the landscaping.   
 
Boardmember Thrailkill asked if there were any walkways between building A & B and to the park and 
ride.  Boardmember Carlson commented that is seemed a long way from the buildings to the park and 
ride.  There would have to be a grade change addressed to add a stair step pedestrian access to the north 
end of the site.  
 
Planner Kwarsick asked what type of materials would be used for the lot surfaces.  Mr. Goodmon stated 
that standard asphalt and some permeable concrete or pavers could be used to create some texture 
throughout.  The parking stall stripes will be painted yellow for park and ride and the commercial 
parking stalls will be painted white.  Boardmember Carlson asked about the degree of grade change 
between the sidewalk and the building and Mr. Goodmon responded he is getting a civil engineer to 
check the grade for the drainage.   
 
Mr. Saxman passed out copies of elevation perspective to the buildings and talked about the materials to 
be used on the commercial building.  Sally’s Nursery has horizontal siding and other buildings close by 
have cedar shingles and there is rock and brick used in and around Coupeville buildings.  Planner 
Kwarsick asked if more attention could be brought to the fact that it is a pedestrian access.  The 
entrances are along the backside away from the street.  Is there a way to give it more definition for the 
pedestrian access along South Main Street.  Could the pedestrian way continue through the project to the 
NE corner of the park and ride.  Mr. Saxman responded that the pathway could be developed into a 
feature for pedestrian access and would be happy to do this along with signage to add to this entrance.   
 
Chairperson Fonda asked where the Ebey’s station signage be located.  Planner Kwarsick responded that 
it would be part of a directory sign and  recommended that a standard be used for all of the signs. Frank 
Meyers asked about the set back from South Main Street and it is 10 feet. 
 
Chairperson Fonda complimented those that got together for a win win situation and thanked everyone 
for coming.  The Design Review Board thought is was a great project. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:50 a.m. 


